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Staff Report   
City of Manhattan Beach 

  
 

TO:  Honorable Mayor Cohen and Members of the City Council 
 
THROUGH: Geoff Dolan, City Manager 
 
FROM: Jim Arndt, Director of Public Works 
  Juan Price, Maintenance Superintendent 
 

DATE: June 16, 2009 
 

SUBJECT: Consideration of a Contract to Perform a Level III Energy Audit- City Buildings, 
Equipment and Facilities to PE Consulting in the Amount of $64,950 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council award RFP #764-09 to PE Consulting to perform a Level 
III Energy Audit City Buildings, Equipment and Facilities in the amount of $64,950 

 
 

FISCAL IMPLICATION: 
Funds totaling $150,000 are budgeted in the CIP Fund for these services, however if timing allows, 
Federal stimulus energy grant funding will supplant budgeted CIP funds.  We have been awarded 
$155,800 in Federal stimulus energy funds and will use this money for projects resulting from the 
energy audit if the funds are not yet available to pay for the audit itself. 
 
DISCUSSION: 

In January 2007, the City Council adopted a resolution endorsing the US Mayors Climate 
Protection Agreement, which focuses on global warming and the need for all cities to reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions. Following this directive, The City of Manhattan Beach has committed to 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions 7% below 1990 levels through the development of a local 
Climate Action Plan for the City of Manhattan Beach.  An integral part of this plan will focus on 
reducing greenhouse gases from municipal operations through energy efficiency. 
 
The City released an RFP in April seeking a comprehensive Level III audit (please see the attached 
RFP for the detail requested) of all its current facilities and included equipment, analysis of energy 
use, and detailed strategies to attain its energy efficiency goals. The analysis is to include detailed 
anticipated carbon emission offsets, cost per ton to achieve these offsets, strategies to implement 
retrofits or new construction, and recommendations regarding prioritizing energy conservation 
measures (ECMs). 
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Staff received five responses to the RFP. An additional proposal was submitted by EcoMedia, but 
review of the submittal was considered non responsive. A summary of pricing offered by each 
vendor is shown below: 
 
Company    Cost 
    

1. Willdan   $121,710 
2. Siemans   $184,000 
3. EMG    $  94,930 
4. BASE Energy   $120,032 
5. PE Consulting   $  64,950 
 

Staff was approached by the South Bay Council of Governments (SBCOG) after receipt of 
solicited responses, and expressed interest in potentially providing similar services at no cost to 
the City. In order to ascertain whether the offer from SBCOG met the requirements of the RFP’s 
that were already being reviewed, staff agreed to delay making a final decision until a proposal 
was received from the SBCOG team. In order to be considered, the terms were that the RFP 
requirements were to be met on equal terms as those that had already been received, and were to 
be delivered within two weeks.  
 
Upon reviewing and grading the resulting proposal to the same criteria as the initially received 
proposals, the SBCOG proposal did not meet the level of detail required to move forward with 
the SBCOG offer.  
 
The award selection is based upon many factors: prior experience, technical expertise, staffing, 
references, ability to meet insurance requirements, and cost.  PE Consulting offered the lowest 
price, met all specifications, and has a successful track record and references.  Based upon these 
factors, staff recommends that Council award RFP#764-09 to PE Consulting to perform a Level III 
Energy Audit of City Buildings, Equipment and Facilities contract in the amount of $64,950.   
 
Once completed, it is expected that there will be projects that may be chosen from both a cost and 
carbon reduction benefit from the $1,000,000 set aside in the recommended City CIP for FY 
2009/2010 budget and from the Federal stimulus funding.  We expect that the energy audit will be 
completed by the late summer or early fall timeframe. 
 
Attachment: Level III energy Audit RFP  
 
xc: Henry Mitzner, Controller 
 Keith Darling. Facilities Supervisor 


































































